

**IPDC** THE INTERNATIONAL PROGRAMME FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF COMMUNICATION

57th Meeting of the Bureau of the IPDC Intergovernmental Council

UNESCO Headquarters, Paris 20-22 March 2013

# MINUTES

Present:Representative of the Director-General of UNESCO (Mr Jānis Kārkliņš)IPDC Chairman (Mr Jyrki Pulkkinen, Finland)IPDC Rapporteur (Mr Mikhail Gusman, Russian Federation)IPDC Secretary (Mr Guy Berger)IPDC Bureau members:--Albania (represented by Mr Remzi Lani)--Algeria (represented by Mr Saïd Chabani)

- Peru (represented by Ms Leyla Bartet)
- Thailand (represented by Mr Kavi Chongkittavorn)
- United States of America (represented by Ms Marguerite Sullivan)
- United Republic of Tanzania (represented by Mr Rafii Makame)

Members of the IPDC Secretariat: Mr Valeri Nikolski, Mr Fackson Banda, Ms Saorla McCabe and Ms Catherine Garner

# **Opening of the 57<sup>th</sup> IPDC Bureau Meeting**

# Item 1 – Adoption of the agenda

The IPDC Chairman, Mr Jyrki Pulkkinen of Finland, declared open the 57th meeting of the IPDC Bureau and briefly outlined the new streamlined process for project selection. He thanked the Bureau members for the excellent work carried out in advance of the meeting, which involved scrutinizing and ranking the project proposals. In the absence of objections, the agenda was formally adopted.

# Item 2 – Opening remarks delivered by Mr Jānis Kārkliņš, Representative of the Director-General of UNESCO and Assistant Director-General for Communication and Information

Mr Karklins welcomed the participants to the meeting and delivered his opening remarks. He emphasized the evolving scope of the Programme and highlighted two recent areas in which efforts have been particularly focused, namely: promoting the safety of journalists, in particular by reinforcing UN system-wide coordination in this area; and secondly, assessing national media landscapes through the application of the IPDC Council-endorsed Media Development Indicators.

A brief update was given on the work being carried out in these respective areas, mentioning the organization of a second UN-Inter Agency Meeting, the recent publishing of a Strategy for the implementation of the *United Nations Action Plan on the Safety of Journalists and the Issue of Impunity* in 2013-2014, and the continued monitoring of the status of judicial enquiries conducted by Member States on the killings of journalists condemned by UNESCO's Director-General. Bureau members were informed that a new report on this issue will be presented on behalf of the Director-General at the next General Conference in November 2013 and at the next IPDC Council session in 2014.

As regards the application of the UNESCO/IPDC Media Development Indicators, the Bureau members were informed that new assessments had been completed or were in their final stages in Egypt, Gabon, Nepal and Tunisia, with ongoing assessments in a further 12 countries, including a regional project in South-East Europe. Mr Karklins notified the Bureau that the IPDC Secretariat is actively engaged in further strengthening the MDI initiative, paying particular attention to assuring quality in the MDI applications and placing an increased emphasis on follow-up activities.

Bureau members' attention was drawn to the worrying situation regarding the IPDC's funding, with the Programme's reliance on voluntary contributions from Member States being underlined. Actions taken by the Secretariat to address this decline in funding were outlined, including the elaboration of a fundraising strategy and the holding of an informal consultation meeting involving donors and potential donors, convened by the IPDC Chair in June 2012.

Gratitude was expressed to the countries that had provided funds to the IPDC in the last year, namely Andorra, Belgium, Denmark, Finland, France, the Netherlands, Norway and Spain, and an appeal was made for renewed support to help ensure that the Programme has the necessary resources to carry out its mandate and remain at the forefront of international media development efforts.

The Bureau members were briefed on some of the highlights of the CI Sector's work over the past year bearing particular relevance to IPDC. These included the initiation of talks on improved information generation and knowledge sharing in international fora as well as the hosting of the successful WSIS+10 Review Meeting and the second celebration of World Radio Day.

# Item 3 – Report by the Chairperson

Mr Pulkkinen outlined the main activities carried out in his capacity as IPDC Chair since being elected at the 28<sup>th</sup> IPDC Council meeting in March, 2012. These included participating in the WSIS+10 conference, conducting informal consultations with Member States in June, 2012, as part of follow-up to the IPDC Council meeting, as well as individual meetings held with donors and potential donors (involving the delegations of Brazil, Canada, Czech Republic, Finland, Germany, Netherland, Nigeria, Peru, Poland, Tanzania and Thailand). He also announced that an additional contribution from Finland of 200 000 Euros would be forthcoming, (doubling the total amount to be contributed by Finland for 2013).

Before moving on to the following agenda item (Selection of IPDC Projects), the Chair briefly recapped the new streamlined process for this task and reminded the Bureau members of the main criteria guiding their decisions. Aside from assessing whether a project adequately addresses at least one of the IPDC's four current priorities, he asked that consideration be given

to whether the project is well motivated and addresses a real need, whether it is innovative and can generate replicable knowledge, and also if it is credible and has a cost-effective budget in terms of producing optimum results. Finally, he reminded Bureau members that proposals are expected to demonstrate gender-sensitivity and/or independence.

# Item 4 – IPDC financial situation (doc ref. CI-13/CONF.201/4)

IPDC Secretary, Mr Guy Berger, gave the Bureau members an overview of the financial situation of the Programme.

# Item 5 – Examination of projects submitted to the 57<sup>th</sup> IPDC Bureau

See Appendix 1: Decisions of the 57<sup>th</sup> Bureau meeting of the IPDC

# Discussion of revised project selection process

Bureau members expressed widespread approval of the revised process for selecting projects and congratulated the Chair on his initiative to propose the new procedure. The Secretariat was encouraged to continue its work to further refine the selection process, for example by providing greater detail in its recommendations, where appropriate. The Chair voiced satisfaction at the outcomes of the deliberations and reiterated his thanks to the Bureau members for their work.

# Item 6 – Examination of strategic documents aimed at Strengthening the Role of IPDC

# Strengthening the role of the IPDC for the period 2014-2021 (doc ref. CI-13/CONF.201/6)

An introduction was given by the IPDC Secretary, followed by discussion among Bureau members. The actions proposed in Section 8 of the abovementioned document were approved with amendments. The decisions taken were as follows:

- The Bureau recognized the IPDC ambition to stretch itself during the period 2014-2021 in
  order to achieve the following Expected Results: widest possible knowledge and ownership
  of the Programme; global respect for IPDC's visible efficiency and effectivity in delivery of
  media development projects (involving steps to adapt the Programme's operational systems
  and parameters in line with the evolving trends in news media); widespread recognition of
  IPDC's status as a global leader in knowledge about media development
- The Bureau did not wish to suggest to Council an amendment of the statutes regarding existing IPDC structures and processes (i.e. the composition of governing bodies).
- It was decided that the 2014 Bureau meeting should deliberate on wording of a revised mission statement for the IPDC which will reflect the changing media context and the forthcoming C4 medium-term strategy for UNESCO.
- The Bureau endorsed the proposed streamlined priorities, criteria and amounts referred to in Section 4.1 of document CI-13/CONF.201/6 as regards future projects being considered for IPDC support.
- The Bureau reaffirmed its support to the Special Initiatives on the Safety of Journalists and the Media Development Indicators, and approved the proposal to conclude Centres of Excellence in Journalism Education as a Special Initiative of the IPDC.

- The incorporation of Knowledge-Driven Media Development was approved as a new Special Initiative.
- A special allocation of US\$ 35,000 was made for the development and application of a set of indicators for measuring the safety of journalists, as an add-on to the Media Development Indicators (MDIs) (Development: US\$ 10,000 / Application: US\$ 25,000).

# Strengthening IPDC's Media Development Indicators initiative (ref. CI-13/CONF.201/12)

A presentation on the IPDC's Media Development Indicators (MDI) was given by Ms Saorla McCabe, Assistant Programme Specialist within the IPDC Secretariat and focal point for the MDI initiative. She reminded the Bureau of the background to the tool, which was endorsed in March 2008 by the IPDC Council and serves as a diagnostic tool for stakeholders to evaluate national media landscapes and determine areas in which intervention is most needed. Ms McCabe spoke of the current challenges being faced by the Initiative which need to be addressed (particularly the need for human and financial resources) and outlined the efforts being undertaken by the Secretariat to further strengthen the MDI initiative. These include activities focused on quality assurance and improving the follow-up to MDI assessments, as well as measures to revise the tool and increase its visibility so as to enable the research findings generated to attract attention among key stakeholders and policy makers and contribute to catalyzing responses to objectively-identified priorities in media development.

# Towards a Knowledge-Driven Media Development agenda for IPDC (presentation only)

Mr Fackson Banda, the Programme Specialist responsible for developing IPDC's work in relation to Knowledge-driven Media Development (KDMD), delivered a short presentation on the important role of the IPDC in relation to knowledge development and information circulation. He emphasized that the large numbers of projects funded by the IPDC each year provide scope for the Programme to be conceptualized within a wider learning cycle and results-based management system, and in this light, he drew attention to the importance of assessing the capacity of each project to serve as a pilot in producing results which, upon analysis, can generate knowledge and ultimately enhance future project selection and learning, in a cyclical nature. In order to develop this aspect of the Programme and realize its potential to become a global leader in transparency and the sharing of information about media development, Mr Banda underlined the importance of taking maximum advantage of the lessons learned from the development and implementation of IPDC projects, by drawing upon implementation, evaluation and overview reports as valuable sources of information. He identified the enhancement of the IPDC database as an important initial step, as well as the need to enlist the support and involvement of key actors, including the World Bank and academic partners such as ORBICOM.

# IPDC Fundraising Strategy (doc ref. CI-13/CONF.201/7)

A brief introduction was provided by IPDC Programme Specialist, Mr Valeri Nikolski. The fundraising strategy was agreed upon by the Bureau, including the proposal to incorporate a "rapid response" mechanism for decisions to be taken between Bureau meetings concerning eventual Funds-in-Trust projects. The Bureau resolved to assist in fundraising efforts wherever possible and appropriate, and encouraged the Secretariat to pursue the fundraising strategy.

# Communication & Visibility for the IPDC (doc ref. CI-13/CONF.201/8)

The Bureau took note of the above document and suggested that a single overarching Key Message be determined in order to sharpen its focus. Further comments included refining the

Indicators of Achievement. The Bureau members recognized the need to adopt a programmatic approach and acknowledged its key role in complimenting the work of UNESCO staff in order to achieve the due recognition which the IPDC merits across the range of significant stakeholders.

# Transforming the UNESCO-IPDC Prize (doc ref. CI-13/CONF.201/10)

The Bureau members considered the proposal to rename the UNESCO-IPDC Prize for Rural Communication as the UNESCO-IPDC World Radio Day Prize. The decision was taken to return to the discussion on this subject at the next IPDC Bureau meeting in 2014, in order to finalize the proposal for consideration to the Council session in November 2014.

# Thematic debates for the 29th Council session (ref. CI-13/CONF.201/11)

The Bureau agreed on the topic of 'Online privacy and freedom of expression' for the thematic debate at the 29<sup>th</sup> Council Session, and agreed that US\$ 8,000 be set aside for that purpose from the IPDC Special Account, if necessary.

It was agreed that the following topics be submitted to the 29<sup>th</sup> IPDC Council for approval as possible topics of the thematic debate at the subsequent (30<sup>th</sup>) Council session:

- Knowledge-driven Media Development
- Developing standards for principles for ethical leadership in news media institutions (incorporating the issues of media concentration and government advertising)
- Supporting new sustainability models for news media

The IPDC Secretary assured Bureau members that every effort would be made to ensure equal geographic representation at upcoming meetings and debates.

# Item 7 – Proposed dates for the 29<sup>th</sup> Council session (document ref. CI-13/CONF.201/9)

The Bureau members accepted the Secretariat's proposal to amend the dates of the subsequent IPDC meetings in order to regularize the Secretariat's work with regards the Report on the Safety of Journalists, and agreed on the following:

- The 58<sup>th</sup> Bureau meeting will be held on 20-21 March 2014.
- The 29<sup>th</sup> IPDC Council session will be held in November 2014 (eventual dates to be proposed for Council Members' approval: 19-21 November 2014).

# Item 8 – Closure of the meeting

The Chairman thanked the Members of the Bureau for their valuable contribution to the proceedings and declared the 57<sup>th</sup> Bureau meeting of the Intergovernmental Council of the IPDC closed.

\*\*\*\*\*\*

Appendix 1: Decisions of the 57<sup>th</sup> Bureau meeting of the IPDC Appendix 2: Full list of Bureau members (with contact details)

# DECISIONS OF THE 57<sup>th</sup> MEETING OF THE IPDC BUREAU DÉCISIONS DU 57e RÉUNION DU BUREAU DU PIDC

IPDC BUDGET 2013 / BUDGET PIDC 2013 (IN US\$)

Projects approved for financing (63 projects)	809 400
Overhead costs (10%)	80 940
F-I-T project support (phase II) by Norway 'Develop and design communication and information strategies for the recovery, reconstruction, and democratization of the Tunisian Society' (incl. 13% overhead costs)	161 816
Special Allocation for the development and application of indicators on the safety of journalists: (Development: US\$ 10,000 / Application: US\$ 25,000)	35 000
Total	US\$ 1 087 156

# THE 63 MEDIA DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS APPROVED BY THE BUREAU CAN BE BROKEN DOWN AS FOLLOWS: LES 63 PROJETS DE DEVELOPPEMENT DES MEDIAS APPROUVES PAR LE BUREAU PEUVENT ETRE DISTRIBUES COMME SUIT:

Regions	Number of projects approved for financing	IPDC Special Account (in US\$)	IPDC Funds-in-Trust (in US\$)	Total funds (in US\$)	% by region
Africa and Arab region	33	442 200	161 816	604 016	52.5%
Asia and the Pacific	14	220 000	-	220 000	22%
Latin America and the Caribbean	16	228 140	-	228 140	25.5%
Europe	0	0	-	0	0%
GRAND TOTAL	63	890 340	161 816	1 052 156	100%

# DECISIONS OF THE 57TH IPDC BUREAU / DÉCISIONS DU 57<sup>e</sup> BUREAU DU PIDC

			AFRICA			
No.	CLUSTER OFFICE	PROJECT NUMBER	PROJECT TITLE	BUREAU'S DECISION	AMOUNT ALLOCATED (US\$)	AMOUNT ALLOCATED (incl 10% overhead costs)
1.	ACCRA	IPDC/57 BEN/01	BENIN: RENFORCEMENT DES CAPACITES EN MATIERE D'EQUIPEMENT TECHNIQUES D'IMPRIMERIE ET DE FORMATION	Not approved	0	0
2.	ACCRA	IPDC/57 IVC/01	COTE D'IVOIRE: RENFORCEMENT DES CAPACITES DES ASSISTANTS DE MONITORING EN PERIODE ELECTORALE	Approved	11 000	12 100
3.	ACCRA	IPDC/57 GHA/01	GHANA: ESTABLISHMENT OF AN INSTITUTE FOR COMMUNICATION AT KWAME NKRUMAH UNIVERSITY OF SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY	Not approved	0	0
4.	ACCRA	IPDC/57 LIR/01	LIBERIA: MEDIA DEVELOPMENT ASSESSMENT BASED ON UNESCO'S MDIS	Approved	20 000	22 000
5.	ACCRA	IPDC/57 NIR/01	NIGERIA: PROMOTING SAFETY OF JOURNALISTS IN NIGERIA	Approved	18 000	19 800
6.	ACCRA	IPDC/57 SIL/01	SIERRA LEONE: STRENGTHENING THE CAPACITY OF RADIO BINTUMANI	Approved	20 000	22 000
7.	ACCRA	IPDC/57 TOG/01	TOGO: PROJET D'APPUI A LA VOIX DES FEMMES	Approved	9 000	9 900
8.	ACCRA	IPDC/57 RAF/01	REGIONAL: PROMOTING THE AFRICAN CHARTER ON BROADCASTING AND ADVOCATING FOR FREEDOM OF EXPRESSION	Not approved	0	0
9.	ВАМАКО	IPDC/57 BKF/01	BURKINA FASO: PROJET D'APPUI AUX MEDIAS ASSOCIATIFS DANS LA REGION DU SAHEL BURKINABE	Not approved	0	0
10.	ВАМАКО	IPDC/57 MLI/01	MALI: PROMOTION D'UN JOURNALISME SENSIBLE AUX CONFLITS	Approved	20 000	22 000
11.	DAKAR	IPDC/57 SEN/01	SENEGAL: RENFORCEMENT DES CAPACITES EN ENVIRONNEMENT DES ETUDIANTS DU CESTI	Approved	8 000	8 800
12.	DAKAR	IPDC/57 SEN/02	SENEGAL: « BAOBABS FM » YOUTH COMMUNITY RADIO	Not approved	0	0
13.	DAKAR	IPDC/57 CVI/01	CAP VERT : NUMERISATION ET EXPLOITATION DES ARCHIVES AUDIOVISUELS DE LA RTC (CONTINUATION)	Not approved	0	0
14.	DAKAR	IPDC/57 RAF/02	REGIONAL: USYPAC CONFERENCE ON MEDIA LAW REFORM IN CENTRAL AFRICA	Not approved	0	0
15.	DAR ES SALAAM	IPDC/57 MAG/01	MADAGASCAR: BUILDING CAPACITY OF LOCAL RADIO STATIONS AND CIVIL SOCIETY TO PROMOTE AND DEVELOP DEMOCRATIC DISCOURSE	Approved	12 000	13 200

16.	DAR ES SALAAM	IPDC/57 URT/01	TANZANIA: PROMOTING GENDER EQUALITY IN TANZANIA COMMUNITY MEDIA THROUGH THE APPLICATION OF UNESCO'S GENDER-SENSITIVE INDICATORS FOR MEDIA	Not approved	0	0
17.	DAR ES SALAAM	IPDC/57 RAF/03	REGIONAL: TWINNING MLIMANI RADIO (TANZANIA) WITH SIREN FM (UK) TO SUPPORT IMPROVED PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT FOR COMMUNITY MEDIA PRACTITIONERS AT THE UNIVERSITY OF DAR-ES-SALAAM	Approved	6 000	6 600
18.	HARARE	IPDC/57 MLW/01	MALAWI: ADAPTATION FOR LOCAL USE OF THE UNESCO MODEL CURRICULA FOR JOURNALISM EDUCATION IN MALAWI	Approved	8 000	8 800
19.	HARARE	IPDC/57 ZAM/01	ZAMBIA: ESTABLISHMENT OF ZONE CR FOR CHILDREN AND YOUTH IN ZAMBIA	Not approved	0	0
20.	HARARE	IPDC/57 ZIM/01	ZIMBABWE: CREATING SAFETY MECHANISMS FOR JOURNALISTS IN ZIMBABWE	Approved	14 000	15 400
21.	HARARE	IPDC/57 ZIM/02	ZIMBABWE: MULTIMEDIA TRAINING OF LECTURERS AND CURRICULUM REVIEW IN ZIMBABWE	Approved	8 000	8 800
22.	HARARE	IPDC/57 RAF/04	REGIONAL: STRENGTHENING MEDIA ACCOUNTABILITY SYSTEMS IN SOUTHERN AFRICA	Approved	9 000	9 900
23.	LIBREVILLE	IPDC/57 GAB/01	GABON: AMELIORATION DE LA REPRESENTATION DU GENRE DANS LE QUOTIDIEN L'UNION	Approved	5 000	5 500
24.	NAIROBI	IPDC/57 DJI/01	DJIBOUTI: ENHANCING THE DJIBOUTIAN MEDIA POLICY AND REGULATORY FRAMEWORK	Approved	15 000	16 500
25.	NAIROBI	IPDC/57 ETH/01	ETHIOPIA: BUILDING CAPACITY OF SCHOOL COMMUNITY RADIO VOLUNTEERS IN BASIC RADIO BROADCASTING TECHNIQUES	Not approved	0	0
26.	NAIROBI	IPDC/57 ETH/02	ETHIOPIA: CAPACITY BUILDING ON USE OF DIGITAL TECHNOLOGY FOR 96.3 FM MEDIA PROFESSIONALS	Not approved	0	0
27.	NAIROBI	IPDC/57 KEN/01	KENYA: MAINSTREAMING GENDER AT DECISION-MAKING LEVELS IN BROADCASTING ORGANIZATIONS	Not approved	0	0
28.	NAIROBI	IPDC/57 MAR/01	MAURITIUS: COUNTING THE DIFFERENCE – GENDER AND THE MAURITIUS MEDIA	Not approved	0	0
29.	NAIROBI	IPDC/57 RWA/01	RWANDA: CREATION D'UNE RADIO COMMUNAUTAIRE KIBABIRO FM	Not approved	0	0
30.	NAIROBI	IPDC/57 RWA/02	RWANDA: FORMATION DES JOURNALISTES SUR LE PROCESSUS ELECTORAL AU RWANDA	Approved	10 000	11 000
31.	NAIROBI	IPDC/57 SEY/01	SEYCHELLES: CAPACITY BUILDING OF GEMPLUS TO ENHANCE INSTITUTIONAL CAPACITY	Not approved	0	0
32.	NAIROBI	IPDC/57 SOM/01	SOMALIA: ADVOCACY FOR PUNTLAND JOURNALISTS – PROFESSIONAL CODE OF CONDUCT	Not approved	0	0
33.	NAIROBI	IPDC/57 SOM/02	SOMALIA: DRAFTING A CODE OF ETHICS FOR SOMALI JOURNALISTS WITH GRASSROOTS CONSULTATION	Approved	15 000	16 500

34.	NAIROBI	IPDC/57 SUD/01	SOUTH SUDAN: SUPPORT TO THE ASSOCIATION FOR MEDIA WOMEN IN SOUTH SUDAN TO FOSTER GENDER EQUALITY	Approved	20 000	22 000
35.	NAIROBI	IPDC/57 UGA/01	UGANDA: STRENGTHENING SECURITY OF JOURNALISTS IN UGANDA TO REALIZE FREEDOM OF EXPRESSION	Approved	8 000	8 800
36.	NAIROBI	IPDC/57 UGA/02	UGANDA: STRENGTHENING THE CAPACITY OF THE UGANDA CHRISTIAN UNIVERSITY TO EXTEND THE BOUNDARIES OF FREEDOM OF EXPRESSION, PLURALISM AND DIVERSITY	Not approved	0	0
37.	NAIROBI	IPDC/57 RAF/05	REGIONAL: A REGIONAL APPROACH TOWARDS INTEGRATING CONFLICT-SENSITIVE AND ELECTION REPORTING CONTENT IN CURRICULUM	Approved	18 000	19 800
38.	WINDHOEK	IPDC/57 LES/01	LESOTHO: ESTABLISHMENT OF MOEILING COMMUNITY MULTIMEDIA CENTRE IN BUTHA-BUTHE REGION, LESOTHO	Not approved	0	0
39.	WINDHOEK	IPDC/57 NAM/01	NAMIBIA: CAPACITY BUILDING OF THE COMMUNITY MEDIA IN NAMIBIA THROUGH THE DEVELOPMENT OF ETHICAL STANDARDS FOR ELECTION COVERAGE AND FOSTERING COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION IN CONTENT DEVELOPMENT	Approved	9 000	9 900
40.	WINDHOEK	IPDC/57 SAF/01	SWAZILAND: BUILDING CAPACITY OF SWAZILAND MEDIA TO EFFECTIVELY AND PROFESSIONALLY INVESTIGATE AND REPORT DEVELOPMENTAL ISSUES	Not approved	0	0
41.	WINDHOEK	IPDC/57 SWA/01	SOUTH AFRICA: STRENGTHENING SCIENCE JOURNALISM IN SOUTH AFRICA	Approved	14 000	15 400
42.	WINDHOEK	IPDC/57 RAF/06	REGIONAL: BUILDING OF PRODUCTION AND BROADCASTING SKILLS IN GOOD GOVERNANCE AND DEVELOPMENT FOR COMMUNITY RADIOS IN NAMIBIA AND SOUTH AFRICA	Not approved	0	0
43.	YAOUNDE	IPDC/57 BDI/01	BURUNDI: PROMOUVOIR LA SECURITE ET LA PROTECTION DES JOURNALISTES AU BURUNDI	Approved	14 000	15 400
44.	YAOUNDE	IPDC/57 CMR/01	CAMEROON: ASSESSING COMMUNITY RADIO BROADCASTING IN CAMEROON	Approved	8 000	8 800
45.	YAOUNDE	IPDC/57 CAF/01	REPUBLIQUE CENTRAFRICAINE: APPUI AU PROGRAMME D'ECHANGES SUR LA FORMATION EN JOURNALISME AU DEPARTEMENT DES SCIENCES ET TECHNIQUES DE L'INFORMATION ET DE LA COMMUNICATION A L'UNIVERSITE DE BANGUI	Not approved	0	0
46.	YAOUNDE	IPDC/57 CAF/02	REPUBLIQUE CENTRAFRICAINE: RENFORCEMENT DES CAPACITES DES JOURNALISTES SUR LA GOUVERNANCE ELECTORALE	Approved	11 000	12 100
47.	YAOUNDE	IPDC/57 CHD/01	TCHAD : RENFORCEMENT DES CAPACITES DES MEDIASTCHADIENS AU TRAITEMENT DE L'INFORMATION LIEE AUCHANGEMENT CLIMATIQUE	Approved	10 000	11 000

48.	YAOUNDE	IPDC/57 CHD/02	TCHAD : RENFORCEMENT DES CAPACITES DES MEDIAS AUDIOVISUELS AU TCHAD	Not approved	0	0
49.	YAOUNDE	IPDC/57 RAF/07	<b>REGIONAL : DEVELOPPEMENT DES COMPETENCES</b> MANAGERIALES DES CADRES DE PRESSE EN ZONE CEMAC	Not approved	0	0
TOTAL AFRICA REGION (incl. 10% overhead costs) :			US\$ 352 000 FOR	26 PROJECTS A	PPROVED	

			ARAB REGION			
No.	CLUSTER OFFICE	PROJECT NUMBER	PROJECT TITLE	BUREAU'S DECISION	AMOUNT ALLOCATED (US\$)	AMOUNT ALLOCATED (incl 10% overhead costs)
1.	AMMAN	IPDC/57 JOR/01	JORDAN: OPTIMAL USE OF THE JOURNALISTS' RIGHT TO ACCESS INFORMATION	Approved	13 000	14 300
2.	CAIRO	IPDC/57 EGY/01	EGYPT: TRAINING COURSE FOR EGYPTIAN JOURNALISTS AND MEDIA WOMEN ON THE IMPACT OF WOMEN IN THE DEVELOPMENT OF UPPER EGYPT	Approved	16 000	17 600
3.	RABAT	IPDC/57 ALG/01	ALGERIE : FORMATION DES PROFESSIONNELS DE LA PRESSE INDEPENDANTE ALGERIENNE SUR LES QUESTIONS LIEES A LA SECURITE DES JOURNALISTES	Approved	10 000	11 000
4.	RABAT	IPDC/57 MOR/01	MAROC : RENFORCEMENT DE CAPACITES DES RADIOS ASSOCIATIVES COMMUNAUTAIRES	Approved	10 000	11 000
5.	RABAT	IPDC/57 MAU/01	MAURITANIE : RENFORCEMENT DE CAPACITES DES JEUNES JOURNALISTES MEMBRES DU SYNDICAT DES JOURNALISTES MAURITANIENS (SJM)	Approved	13 000	14 300
6.	RABAT	IPDC/57 TUN/01	TUNISIE : EDUCATION AUX MEDIAS ET A L'INFORMATION DES JEUNES TUNISIENNES	Not approved	0	0
7.	RAMALLAH	IPDC/57 PAL/01	PALESTINE: SAFETY TRAINING FOR MEDIA STUDENTS	Approved	11 500	12 650
8.	RAMALLAH	IPDC/57 PAL/02	PALESTINE: PROMOTION OF PALESTINIAN WOMEN'S VIEWS IN THE NEWS	Approved	8 500	9 350
TOTA	TOTAL ARAB REGION (incl. 10% overhead costs) :				7 PROJECTS APPI	ROVED

TOTAL AFRICA & THE ARAB REGION (incl. 10% overhead costs) :	US\$ 442 200 FOR 33 PROJECTS APPROVED
---	---------------------------------------

			ASIA AND THE PACIFIC			
No.	CLUSTER OFFICE	PROJECT NUMBER	PROJECT TITLE	BUREAU'S DECISION	AMOUNT ALLOCATED (US\$)	AMOUNT ALLOCATED (incl 10% overhead costs)
1.	ALMATY	IPDC/57 RAS/01	REGIONAL: GENDER MAINSTREAMING IN BROADCASTING ORGANISATIONS IN THE ASIA-PACIFIC REGION	Approved	10 000	0
2.	APIA	IPDC/57 VAN/01	VANUATU: BUILDING THE TECHNICAL AND INSTITUTIONAL CAPACITY OF THE COMMUNITY RADIO SOCIETY OF TAFEA	Approved	11 000	12 100
3.	APIA	IPDC/57 RAS/02	<b>REGIONAL: IFJ - STRENGTHENING PACIFIC MEDIA ASSOCIATIONS FOR FREEDOM OF EXPRESSION AND DEMOCRACY</b>	Not approved	0	0
4.	BANGKOK	IPDC/57 CAM/01	CAMBODIA: CAPACITY BUILDING FOR PROVINCIAL RADIO STAFF	Approved	15 000	16 500
5.	BANGKOK	IPDC/57 CAM/02	CAMBODIA: JOURNALISM TRAINING FOR YOUNG JOURNALISTS OF THE KHMER COMMUNITY NEWSPAPER PROJECT	Not approved	0	0
6.	BANGKOK	IPDC/57 MYA /01	MYANMAR : BUILDING CAPACITY OF THE JOURNALISM DEPARTMENT AT YANGON UNIVERSITY	Approved	18 000	19 800
7.	BANGKOK	IPDC/57 MYA /02	MYANMAR : DIPLOMA IN TV BROADCASTING	Not approved	0	0
8.	BANGKOK	IPDC/57 THA/01	THAILAND: COMMUNITY MEDIA TRAINING PROGRAMME	Not approved	0	0
9.	BANGKOK	IPDC/57 VIE/01	VIETNAM: PROFESSIONAL CAPACITY BUILDING FOR PROMOTING ACCESS TO MULTILINGUAL DIGITAL INFORMATION & KNOWLEDGE	Not approved	0	0
10.	BANGKOK	IPDC/57 RAS/03	REGIONAL: DART CENTRE - ENHANCING UNDERSTANDING OF TRAUMATIC EXPOSURE AS A SAFETY ISSUE FOR JOURNALISTS	Approved	24 000	26 400
11.	BEIJING	IPDC/57 CPR /01	CHINA: IMPROVING THE MEDIA LANDSCAPE IN THE ETHNIC MINORITY AREAS OF YUNNAN PROVINCE	Approved	15 000	16 500
12.	BEIJING	IPDC/57 MON /01	MONGOLIA: PILOTING THE GENDER-SENSITIVE INDICATORS FOR MEDIA AND MEDIA SELF-REGULATION IN MONGOLIA	Approved	13 500	14 850
13.	JAKARTA	IPDC/57 MAL/01	MALAYSIA: BUILDING A NETWORK OF JOURNALISTS AS ADVOCATES OF MEDIA SELF-REGULATION	Not approved	0	0
14.	KATHMAN DU	IPDC/57 RAS/03	NEPAL: CAPACITY BUILDING AND SAFETY TRAINING FOR WOMEN JOURNALISTS	Approved	13 000	14 300
15.	KATHMAN DU	IPDC/57 NEP/01	NEPAL: ENABLING FREEDOM OF EXPRESSION THROUGH ENHANCING THE CAPACITY OF JOURNALISTS TO REPORT ON ELECTIONS	Not approved	0	0
16.	NEW DELHI	IPDC/57 BGD /01	BANGLADESH: CAPACITY BUILDING OF COMMUNITY RADIO BROADCASTERS	Not approved	0	0
17.	NEW DELHI	IPDC/57 BGD /02	BANGLADESH: PROGRAMME FOR UNDERSTANDING RIGHT TO INFORMATION FOR ACCURATE AND FAIR JOURNALISM	Approved	12 000	13 200
18.	NEW DELHI	IPDC/57 BHU/01	BHUTAN: BUILDING INSTITUTIONAL CAPACITY OF BHUTAN MEDIA INSTITUTE	Approved	15 000	16 500

19.	NEW DELHI	IPDC/57 BHU /02	BHUTAN: TRAINING OF JOURNALISTS IN ELECTORAL REPORTING	Not approved	0	0
20.	NEW DELHI	IPDC/57 IND /01	INDIA: BUILDING CAPACITIES OF WOMEN COMMUNITY BROADCASTERS IN INDIA	Not approved	0	0
21.	NEW DELHI	IPDC/57 MLD /01	MALDIVES: CAPACITY BUILDING FOR COMMUNITY-BASED RADIO BROADCASTING	Approved	8 000	8 800
22.	NEW DELHI	IPDC/57 SRL/01	SRI-LANKA: BUILDING AWARENESS ON IMPORTANCE OF RIGHT TO INFORMATION	Approved	14 000	15 400
23.	NEW DELHI	IPDC/57 RAS/04	REGIONAL: ABU- TRAINING WORKSHOP ON CONTENT CREATION FOR MULTIPLATFORM RADIO	Not approved	0	0
24.	NEW DELHI	IPDC/57 RAS/05	REGIONAL: AMARC – ENHANCING ACCESS TO COMMUNITY MEDIA: CAPACITY BUILDING OF WOMEN COMMUNITY RADIO BROADCASTERS	Not approved	0	0
25.	TEHRAN	IPDC/57 PAK /01	PAKISTAN: STRENGTHENING THE DRAFT OF RIGHT TO INFORMATION (RTI) LAW AND RAISING VOICES AGAINST IMPUNITY OF JOURNALIST KILLINGS	Approved	19 000	20 900
26.	TEHRAN	IPDC/57 RAS/06	<b>REGIONAL: STRENGTHENING JOURNALISM EDUCATION IN PAKISTAN, AFGHANISTAN AND IRAN, THROUGH ADAPTATION AND ADOPTION OF UNESCO'S MODEL CURRICULA</b>	Approved	12 500	13 750
ΤΟΤ	TOTAL ASIA AND THE PACIFIC REGION (incl. 10% overhead costs) :			US\$ 220 000 FOR	14 PROJECTS APPR	ROVED

	LATIN AMERICA AND THE CARIBBEAN									
No.	CLUSTER OFFICE	PROJECT NUMBER	PROJECT TITLE	BUREAU'S DECISION	AMOUNT ALLOCATED (US\$)	AMOUNT ALLOCATED (incl 10% overhead costs)				
1.	HAVANA	IPDC/57 CUB/01	CUBA: INCREASING WOMEN'S PARTICIPATION IN LOCAL MEDIA	Not approved	0	0				
2.	HAVANA	IPDC/57 DOM/01	DOMINICAN REPUBLIC: MEDIA ASSESSMENT IN DOMINICAN REPUBLIC USING THE MEDIA DEVELOPMENT INDICATORS	Approved	20 000	22 000				
3.	HAVANA	IPDC/57 RLA/01	<b>REGIONAL: WORKSHOP-COURSE ON JOURNALISM AND CITIZENS'</b> EMPOWERMENT ON THE WEB	Not approved	0	0				
4.	KINGSTON	IPDC/57 BAR/01	BARBADOS: BUILDING JOURNALISTIC CAPACITY TO IMPROVE AND INCREASE ECONOMIC REPORTING	Not approved	0	0				
5.	KINGSTON	IPDC/57 CUR/01	CURAÇAO : ENHANCING THE SKILLS OF REPORTERS AND JOURNALISTS IN CURAÇAO	Approved	8 000	8 800				
6.	KINGSTON	IPDC/57 DMI/01	DOMINICA: COMMUNITY RADIO ENGENDERING COMMUNITY COHESION AND DEVELOPMENT	Not approved	0	0				
7.	KINGSTON	IPDC/57 JAM/01	JAMAICA: STRENGTHENING AND UPGRADING JET FM FOR COMMUNITY EMPOWERMENT	Approved	13 500	14 850				
8.	KINGSTON	IPDC/57 STV/01	ST VINCENT AND THE GRENADINES: ENHANCING PROGRAMME PRODUCTION SKILLS AT BROADCAST MEDIA HOUSES	Approved	8 000	8 800				
9.	KINGSTON	IPDC/57 RLA/02	<b>REGIONAL: CBU – BUILDING CAPACITY TO IMPROVE INDIGENOUS</b> AUDIOVISUAL CONTENT IN THE CARIBBEAN	Approved	22 000	24 200				
10.	MONTEVIDEO	IPDC/57 ARG/01	ARGENTINA: GREENING THE NEWS – ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION TRAINING FOR JOURNALISTS	Not approved	0	0				
11.	MONTEVIDEO	IPDC/57 BRA/01	BRAZIL: NATIONAL TRAINING PROGRAM FOR JOURNALISTS ON USING THE BRAZILIAN FREEDOM OF INFORMATION LAW	Approved	14 000	15 400				
12.	MONTEVIDEO	IPDC/57 CHI/01	CHILE: BUILDING A PRESS AGENCY OF YOUTH	Not approved	0	0				
13.	MONTEVIDEO	IPDC/57 PAR/01	PARAGUAY: GENDER EQUALITY PROMOTION THROUGH THE EXPERIMENTAL USE OF THE GENDER-SENSITIVE INDICATORS FOR MEDIA, ITS POLICIES AND PRODUCTS, AND IN RELATED ORGANIZATIONS	Not approved	0	0				
14.	MONTEVIDEO	IPDC/57 URU/01	URUGUAY: PROMOTION OF INVESTIGATIVE JOURNALISM AND THE RIGHT TO INFORMATION	Approved	12 000	13 200				
15.	MONTEVIDEO	IPDC/57 RLA/03	<b>REGIONAL: USE AND APPROPRIATION OF ICTS IN COMMUNITY RADIOS IN ARGENTINA, URUGUAY AND PARAGUAY</b>	Approved	10 000	11 000				
16.	QUITO	IPDC/57 BOL/01	BOLIVIA: CAPACITIES OF PROFESSIONAL JOURNALISM AND ALTERNATIVE MEDIA STRENGTHENED IN COCHABAMBA, BOLIVIA, FOR THE PROMOTION OF FREEDOM OF EXPRESSION AND INFORMATION	Approved	6 000	6 600				
17.	QUITO	IPDC/57 COL/01	COLOMBIA: DEVELOPMENT OF THE MEDIA IN COLOMBIA, ACCORDING TO THE APPLICATION OF UNESCO'S MDIS	Approved	20 000	22 000				

18.	QUITO	IPDC/57 ECU/01	ECUADOR: TRAINING FOR JUDICIAL JOURNALISTS, INSTITUTIONAL COMMUNICATORS IN ASSERTIVE CRIMINAL LAW JUDICIAL COMMUNICATION	Not approved	0	0
19.	QUITO	IPDC/57 PER/01	PERU: STRENGTHENING AND TRAINING THE INDIGENOUS COMMUNICATORS NETWORK OF PERU	Approved	13 000	14 300
20.	QUITO	IPDC/57 VEN/01	VENEZUELA: RADIO TRAINING FOR INDIGENOUS COMMUNITY COMMUNICATORS	Approved	6 500	7 150
21.	QUITO	IPDC/57 RLA/04	REGIONAL: MULTIMEDIA TOOLBOX ON RADIO TRAINING FOR COMMUNITY MEDIA	Not approved	0	0
22.	SAN JOSÉ/ GUATEMALA	IPDC/57 GUA/01	GUATEMALA: FIGHTING IMPUNITY AND PROMOTING KNOWLEDGE OF LEGISLATION AND JUSTICE MECHANISMS IN ORDER TO IMPROVE SAFETY OF JOURNALISTS AND FREEDOM OF THE PRESS IN GUATEMALA	Approved	11 000	12 100
23.	SAN JOSE	IPDC/57 HON/01	HONDURAS: PROMOTION AND STRENGTHENING OF THE RAPCOS NETWORK FOR THE PROTECTION OF JOURNALISTS	Approved	10 500	11 550
24.	SAN JOSE	IPDC/57 MEX/01	MEXICO: STRENGTHENING FREEDOM OF EXPRESSION, GENDER EDUCATION AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION FOR INDIGENOUS COMMUNITIES THROUGH RADIO	Approved	8 500	9 350
25.	SAN JOSE	IPDC/57 RLA/05	<b>REGIONAL: IAPA – PREVENTION AND SOLIDARITY TO COMBAT VIOLENCE AGAINST JOURNALISTS AND THE NEWS MEDIA</b>	Approved	24 400	26 840
TOT	OTAL LATIN AMERICA & THE CARIBBEAN REGION (incl. 10% overhead costs) :			US\$ 228 140 FOR	16 PROJECTS APPR	ROVED

EUROPE							
No.	CLUSTER OFFICE	PROJECT NUMBER	PROJECT TITLE	BUREAU'S DECISION	AMOUNT ALLOCATED (US\$)	AMOUNT ALLOCATED (incl 10% overhead costs)	
1.	HQ	IPDC/57 ALB/01	ALBANIA : PROMOTING GENDER EQUALITY THROUGH THE APPLICATION OF THE GENDER-SENSITIVE INDICATORS FOR MEDIA, ITS POLICIES AND PRODUCTS AND IN RELATED ORGANIZATIONS	Not approved	0	0	
2.	HQ	IPDC/57 MAC/01	MACEDONIA : STANDARDS OF PROFESSIONAL REPORTING ON DIVERSITY AND THEIR OBSERVATION IN NEWSROOMS	Not approved	0	0	
TOT	AL EUROPE I	REGION :	NO PROJECTS APPROVED				

TOTAL (ALL REGIONS)	US\$ 890 340 FOR 63 PROJECTS APPROVED
---------------------	---------------------------------------

# **APPENDIX 2**

# 57<sup>th</sup> IPDC Bureau Meeting - List of Participants / Liste des participants

# **IPDC BUREAU MEMBERS / MEMBRES DU BUREAU DU PIDC**

# **IPDC CHAIR / PRÉSIDENT DU PIDC**

Mr Jyrki Pulkkinen (Finland) Senior Adviser Information Society & STI for Development Department for Development Policy / Unit for Sectoral Policy Ministry for Foreign Affairs of Finland Tel: (+358) 9 160 56166 E-mail: jyrki.pulkkinen@formin.fi

# FINLAND / FINLANDE (additional participants)

Mr Juha Rekola Ombudsman Union of Journalists of Finland Tel: (+358) 9 6122 330 E-mail: juha.rekola@journalistiliitto.fi

Ms Anne Huhtamaki Deputy Permanent Delegate Permanent Delegation of Finland to UNESCO Tel: (+33) 01 45 68 34 32 E-mail: dl.finlande@unesco-delegations.org

# **IPDC RAPPORTEUR / RAPPORTEUR DU PIDC**

Mr Mikhail Gusman (Russian Federation) First Deputy Director-General ITAR-TASS News Agency Tel: +7 (495) 629 79 25 E-mail: tass@itar-tass.com

# **RUSSIAN FEDERATION / FÉDÉRATION DE RUSSIE (additional participants)**

Mr Dimitri Gorokhov Head of France Office ITAR-TASS News Agency Tel: (+33) 01 44 11 31 80 Fax: (+33) 01 47 05 33 98 E-mail: tassparis@noos.fr

#### **ALBANIA / ALBANIE**

M. Remzi Lani Directeur Exécutif Institut albanais des Médias E-mail: rlani@institutemedia.org

S.Exc. Mme Besiana Kadare Ambassadeur extraordinaire et plénipotentiaire, Délégué permanent Délégation permanente d'Albanie auprès de l'UNESCO Tél : (+33) 01 45 68 32 44 Mél : dl.albanie@unesco-delegations.org

# ALGERIA / ALGÉRIE

M. Saïd Chabani Conseiller auprès du Ministre de la Communication Tél: 021 54 10 18 Mél : chabani\_said@yahoo.fr

# PERU / PÉROU

Ms Leyla Bartet Cultural Attaché Permanent Delegation of the Republic of Peru Tel: (+33) 01 45 68 29 31 E-mail: dl.peru@unesco-delegations.org

# TANZANIA / TANZANIE

Mr Rafii Haji Makame Director of Radio Zanzibar Tel: (+255) 777 967 696 E-mail: rafiihmakame@yahoo.com

Prof. Mohammed Sheya Minister, Deputy Permanent Delegate Permanent Delegation of the United Republic of Tanzania to UNESCO Tel: (+33) 01 53 70 63 66 E-mail: ambtanzanie@wanadoo.fr

# THAILAND / THAÏLANDE

Mr Teerapong Sodasri Director-General Public Relations Department (PRD) of Thailand

Mrs Usanee Sritanyarat Executive Director of Foreign Office (International Affairs) PRD of Thailand

Mrs Sukanda Tosasuka Senior Information Officer Foreign Office PRD of Thailand

Mr Kavi Chongkittavorn Representative of the Committee on Communication and Information

Tel: (+662) 628 5646 8-9 E-mail: thainatcom@yahoo.co.th

# UNITED STATES OF AMERICA / ÉTATS-UNIS D'AMÉRIQUE

Ms Marguerite Sullivan Senior Director Center for Media Assistance National Endowment for Democracy marguerites@ned.org

Mrs Megan Larson-Kone Public Affairs Officer Permanent Delegation of the United States of America to UNESCO Tel: (+33) 01 43 12 74 46 E-mail: m.larson-kone.us@unesco-delegations.org

#### **REPRESENTATIVE OF THE DIRECTOR-GENERAL / REPRÉSENTANT DE LA DIRECTRICE GÉNÉRALE**

Mr Jānis Kārkliņš Assistant Director-General for Communication and Information Tel: (+33) 01 45 68 43 20 E-mail: j.karklins@unesco.org

# **IPDC SECRETARIAT / SECRÉTARIAT DU PIDC**

Mr Guy Berger Secretary of the IPDC and Director of UNESCO's Division for Freedom of Expression and Media Development Tel: (+33) (0)1 45 68 42 03 E-mail: g.berger@unesco.org

Mr Valeri Nikolski IPDC Programme Specialist Tel: (+33) (0)1 45 68 42 68 E-mail: v.nikolski@unesco.org

Ms Saorla McCabe Assistant Programme Specialist Focal Point for Media Development Indicators Tel: (+33) (0)1 45 68 42 62 E-mail: s.mccabe@unesco.org

Mr Fackson Banda Programme Specialist Focal Point for Knowledge-driven Media Development Tel: (+33) 01 45 68 42 02 E-mail: f.banda@unesco.org

Ms Catherine Garner Programme Assistant Tel: (+33) (0)1 45 68 42 26 E-mail: c.garner@unesco.org